1957

## Radley v. Smith et al : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

## STATEMENT OF POINTS

### POINT I

#### COURT ERRED IN AWARDING JUDGMENT FOR PLAINTIFF

- A. DEMANDS FOR PERPETUAL MAINTENANCE OF AVALON PROPERTY NOT SUPPORTED.
- B. COURT FAILED TO ORDER RETURN OF INCOME AND PROPERTY TAKEN FOR RESPONDENTS' USE WITHOUT CLAIM OF RIGHT THERETO.
- C. NO JUSTIFICATION FOR AWARDING COSTS AND ATTORNEY FEES AGAINST APPELLANT.
- D. RESPONDENTS HAD NO RIGHT OR JUSTIFICATION FOR OBTAINING ORDER TO PAY TAXES.
- E. APPELLANT DENIED OPPORTUNITY TO BE HEARD ON COUNTERCLAIM ON QUANTUM MERUIT.

### POINT 2

COURT ERRED IN FINDING APPELLANT WAS ISSUED ASSIGNMENT OF DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF CONTRACTS TO WHICH SHE WAS NOT A PARTY AND HAD NOT ASSUMED.

### POINT III

COURT ERRED IN TRYING CASE AND AWARDING JUDGMENT ON REACH OF CONTRACT WHEN SUED FOR UNLAWFUL CONVERSION AND EITHER CAUSE WAS SUPPORTED, BY RESPONDENT.

### POINT IV

THE COURT ERRED IN AWARDING JUDGMENT FOR DAMAGES and specific performance of contracts which are illegal and contrary to public policy when evidence revealed their illegality at the trial.

## **SUMMARY OF THE FACTS**

**During the years from 1946 to 1949 while Federal Rent Acts were in force in this area Respondents obtained occupancy of units in the Avalon Apartments by means of, and after entering into, separate but identical so-called "real estate contracts of sale" with E. Penn Smith. (R. 12-26**

**Respondents' contracts provided for down payments and for monthly installments on principal and interest plus an additional \$15.00 per month to be paid in advance to the "Seller" for "hot water, cold water, heat, refrigeration, taxes and fire insurance." The contracts provided further that the "Seller" was "to keep the property and improvements insured up to 3/4 of its value and pay said general taxes, said Buyers to pay their proportionate share as hereinbefore provided."**

**The contracts provided that the Seller could convey title to the building to a trust or corporation to be set up at the Seller's option on receipt of the designated payments. (R 14 line 8)**



ing or permitting buyers to obtain title or ownership or control of any shares or stock in the proposed trust or corporation, nor any rights or obligation to accept any duties for current or future management or operation of the property. No interest in land, roof, structure, heating, plumbing, electrical or refrigeration equipment nor any duty to maintain or repair such was transferred by said contracts.

Prior to 1946 all 24 units in the Avalon had been controlled housing and were occupied (until this co-opting scheme was undertaken by Smith shortly after he obtained possession of the property in September 1945) by tenants paying maximum legal rents. By the end of 1949 all units had been "sold" to individual purchasers on identical terms set forth in simultaneously-mimeographed "contracts". None of the buyers had occupied their units as legal-rent-paying tenants prior to becoming purchasers of apartments. (A 1-8) The Emergency Price Control Act of 1942 (1309. 1011, Sec 9 (A) 11 FR 12064)

provided:

**"The maximum rents and other requirements of this regulation shall not be evaded, either directly or indirectly in connection with the renting or leasing or transfer of a lease of housing accommodations, by way of absolute or conditional sale, sale with purchase money, or other forms of mortgage..."**

**This provision was continued in force by the 1947 Act (825.110, Sec 3 (a) 12 FR 4337) and by the extensions and amendments until rent control was terminated in this area in 1950.**

**The danger to the whole rent control program inherent in the manipulative potential of cooperative housing schemes was foreseen by Congress. The 1942 law required whenever a cooperative apartment project was contemplated, ownership of the fee must be sold to an association or corporation composed of or owned in large measure by tenant--occupants of the building, 80% from 1942 to August 1947, 65% from 1948 until rent control was terminated in 1950.**

**After February 1945 no purchaser could legally occupy any unit in a co-opted apartment without first obtaining a "certificate of occupancy" from**



the Rent Director. No certificate would issue unless the percentage requirement had been met. (See text laws in appendix.)

None of the Respondents could legally have obtained such a certificate because none of them were tenants before becoming purchasers. Also, no valid operating Trust or Corporation acquired ownership of the fee, and the landlord's duties and rights were not assumed by the "purchasers" of the property. (T 13 line 22)

Although superficially valid these sale contracts did not change the landlord-tenant status of the parties. Occupants took possession expecting and demanding the rights and privileges of tenancy and refused to take on any of the burdens of ownership. (R 2-3) The "Seller" remained in control of the fee and continued to perform all the normal functions of a landlord.

Appellant had no knowledge of any circumventions of the Rent Acts when, in March 1950, she became a holder in due course, for valuable consideration, of a lien on these apparently valid

sales contracts between Smith and the purchasers. At no time did she enter into any contract for or with the purchasers or agree to assume any liabilities or burdens of the "Seller". Smith assigned his interest in the fee and transferred his right to collect the remaining payments due on principal and interest to the Appellant.

Appellant understood that purchasers' \$15.00 per month payments for water, heat, refrigeration, insurance and taxes were not assigned, but were to be accepted in the name of the AVALON TRUST which had been set up to operate the property for the benefit of the purchasers, pending the formation of a corporation by the purchasers who would take over the burdens of ownership thereafter.

As a result of litigation commencing shortly after March 1950 and continuing until mid-1953 Appellant's interests in the Avalon fee and contracts came under the jurisdiction of the District Court and were administered by Tracy Collins Trust Co. By the time these were released almost half of the original purchasers had forfeited their

contracts and their surrendered units became the property of the Appellant.

After decontrol, inflation and general rent increases in this area made the rentals from these units higher than the total of the contract, utility and interest payments being made by the purchasers. Due to increased costs and to depletion of the 65-year-old structure, the \$15.00 contributions of the purchasers became grossly inadequate to provide the utilities and services required by them. No property taxes had been paid on the property since 1950 and no funds were available therefore.

Not one dollar of profit, income, or return on capital investment of over \$50,000.00 had been available, or used by or for the Appellant. (Plaintiffs Exhibits 4-5)

The full extent of her Avalon losses became apparent when appellant received Tracy Collins' annual report for 1954. The serious financial and physical condition of the property was called to the attention of the Respondents in several commu-

ications urging prompt establishment of the Trust or Corporation referred to in their contracts. Appellant offered to participate therein in ratio to her ownership of surrendered units. (Plaintiffs Exhibits 2, 3)

Respondents, apparently relying on the fact that Appellant had to maintain and operate the building in order to rent her own units, ignored these communications until June 1955 when they were notified that Appellant intended to close up her rental units and refused to accept the \$15.00 per month they were contributing for "Utilities" and would no longer supply or operate the property. (Plaintiff Exhibit 2)

Respondents thereupon commenced this suit, immediately requesting a court order to require all of Appellants rental and contract income from the property be paid into a fund for the operation of the property for their benefit. ( R 27--30, 36, 38)

At the hearing on the motion appellant objected to Respondent's unconstitutional taking of her pre-



erty. She told the court she was willing to permit their administration of whatever Respondents were willing to contribute for half of the cost of maintenance and operation of the building, and she would contribute a like amount for her half. Respondents, however refused to contribute more than \$15.00 per month each. The court granted their motion, (r 46) thereby seizing appellant's rental and contract income. All of this has been collected and dispersed since June 1955 for benefit of purchasers by Tracy Collins Trust Company as managing agents for the court. (See Monthly Reports in Record)

Nothing has been paid on Appellant's indebtedness to Smith who has brought suit against Appellant for foreclosure. Nothing has been paid or set aside to pay the \$9,000 due or accruing for taxes and the Respondents have attempted to force Appellant to assign them her interest in the property as security for the payment of these taxes which they have not paid or offered to pay despite their normal and contractual duty to pay a proportionate share



of taxes on property in which they claim rights of ownership.

Some \$15,000 of Appellant's income has thus been taken without due process and used for the benefit of Respondents despite the fact that they did not and could not claim any right or title thereto. (See Tracy Collins Reports in Record)

The case came to trial May 3, 1955. Respondents' pleadings alleged breach of contract against Defendant Smith and unlawful conversion of money paid for taxes against Appellant. (R. 94)

The pleading contained no allegation that Appellant had promised to be bound by terms of the contracts between Smith and Respondents or had contracted with them or with anyone to perform duties or accept obligations for or to the Respondents.

The record shows that there was no evidence produced at the trial and no admission made by the Appellant to support any presumption that Appellant had promised to assume any burdens or liabilities of these contracts.

Nonetheless the Court, without allegation

evidence or admission asserted that Appellant had specifically agreed to perform under the contract. (T. 9 line 9) The Court dismissed Defendant Smith on stipulation of Respondents and proceeded to try the Appellant's case as if that presumption were a fact.

Appellant objected to this presumption and offered evidence to show she was not bound to perform, having become holder of said contracts in reliance on provisions in the contracts whereby the purchasers agreed to a cooperative organization which should have assumed the duties of ownership and performed the functions assigned to the "Seller" by the contracts. (T 12-14)

The Court stated that no such cooperative or trust had been set up or actually entered into by the purchasers and the existence of such could not be implied and also that assumption of the obligations of ownership by the purchasers could not be assigned to them by implication. (A. 13)

The Court thereupon implied that these obligations could be assigned to the Appellant by implication, and proceeded to interpret the contract and

and apply its provisions against the Appellant.

The Appellant had not expected that her case would be tried on the basis of breach of contract. She had come to court prepared to defend against Respondents' allegations as set forth in the pleadings (T. 94 line 6) that she had unlawfully converted money Respondents had paid for taxes.

Exhibits of Tracy Collins' records submitted by the Respondents, show that all Respondents' money had been paid to and received by Tracy Collins for "utilities" (there is no proof whatsoever that Respondents ever designated or desired or understood that the money they paid in for "utilities" was to be used instead for taxes). Said funds were dispersed by Tracy Collins (exhibit 4) for the purpose designated and demanded by the Respondents.

Tabulations of these accounts made by Respondents' Counsel (exhibit 4) showed that the money contributed by Respondents hardly paid for the raw materials (water, gas and power) used without including the cost of providing labor, management, equipment, supply lines, and repairs and maintenance thereof, essential to convert these raw materi-

als into hot water, heat, refrigeration and transport these to the separate units of the purchasers, which costs the records showed to be more than the costs of the raw materials.

Respondents contributed nothing toward the costs of providing the other services, supplies, repairs and maintenance demanded and used by the purchasers and deemed by them to be(R. 29) essential to "decent healthful occupancy of the property."

None of these matters were considered at the trial. Respondent's exhibits were admitted, and serve to prove Appellants contentions, but the Court refused evidence offered by the Appellant on these matters (T. 48). In fact, Appellant was not permitted to bring in evidence on any matter. (T. 19) However she was permitted to testify concerning the rental value of units, to refute Respondent Owen's claim that the money he had been paying while he had occupied his unit had represented a loss to him. Inasmuch as he had occupancy for 5 years of an apartment which had a rental value of \$35.00 per month for a total payment of \$62.50 per month in--



cluding "utilities," the court did not seem impressed by his claim that he had been damaged when he thereupon sold his so-called equity for an \$800.00 equity in an automobile.

The Appellant was given no opportunity in the pleadings or at the trial to prepare or present affirmative defenses against the court's surprising conclusion that she was liable under the terms of the contract between Smith and purchasers. (T. 9. line 9)

Illegality, absence of privity or assent, lack of intent to be bound, lack of consideration, statute of frauds, statute of limitations, ambiguity, termination, waiver, conditions precedent and numerous other valid defenses were available to Appellant and could have been supported with abundant evidence and authorities.

The court recessed after only one day of trial and did not convene again in the presence of Appellant. Nothing that was said or done at the trial gave any indication that the judgment which was handed down some time later would be against



the Appellant.

The Court had stated (R. 168, line 11) that it was not possible to render a judgment for damages against the Appellant for failure to pay taxes when Respondents had not paid them or had not suffered any loss at the time. The Court also stated that it was not possible to specifically enforce an order against the Defendants to pay taxes. (R. 166, line 24)

Respondents other claims were not supported. The Court found Appellant had no duty to maintain the building or restore it or buy new refrigerators or pay damages because the old ones had worn out. (T. 16)

The Court found that the contracts had no specified duration (T. 17) and thus the duties thereunder were terminable at the will of either party. Therefore Appellant had the right to refuse to continue to operate the building for them and to stop providing them with "hot water, cold water, heat or refrigeration". (R. 118)

IT THEREFORE APPEARED TO APPELLANT THAT SHE HAD WON THE LAW SUIT.

# ARGUMENT

## POINT I

THE COURT ERRED IN AWARDED JUDGMENT INCLUDING SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE, DAMAGES AND ATTORNEY FEES AGAINST THE APPELLANT; AND IN FAILING TO HEAR AND DETERMINE HER COUNTER-CLAIM AND AWARD JUDGMENT FOR HER AGAINST RESPONDENTS FOR UNJUST ENRICHMENT; AND IN FAILING TO ORDER RESTITUTION AND RESTORATION TO APPELLANT OF HER AVALON PROPERTY AND INCOME TAKEN FROM APPELLANT ON THE DEMAND OF THE RESPONDENTS AND USED FOR THEIR BENEFIT WITHOUT RIGHT OR JUSTIFICATION IN LAW OR EQUITY.

On the basis of statements of the court appearing in the record, it appeared that the Court had upheld her position and ruled against the Respondents. The suit had been brought by them to compel her to continue forever to bear all the burdens of ownership of the property and to forever operate and maintain it for the benefit of the Respondents without remuneration or adequate contributions from them as co-owners. (R1-5, 96) and to compel her to buy the Respondents new refrigerators, and pay damages because their old ones had ceased to function.

It seems surprising that judgment was held to be against the Appellant. Plaintiffs' claims were denied on the Court's finding that the pro-

visions in the contracts relating to "utilities" actually were nundum pactum and illusory, in that they placed an obligation on the Buyers to pay, but did not state that the seller had to provide any of the specified items. (T. 15, R. 118) <sup>1</sup>

As to other duties seemingly imposed on the Seller by the contract, these provisions included no date of termination, and were therefore terminable at will by either party. (T 17, R.118) <sup>2</sup>

It seems surprising that inasmuch as Respondents failed to support their demands, that the Court failed to make any order requiring them to return to the Appellant the Avalon property and income belonging to her. These, the Respondents had unjustly, and without claim of right, taken from her by means of their motion to have all rents, principal and interest payments and other income from the Avalon paid to the Court, and used

---

1. "Where a contract imposes no definite obligation on one party to perform it lacks mutuality of obligation." Lawrence v. Palston, (Cal.) 226 P2d 656.

2. "If no period of duration is specified in a contract the law infers that parties intended the agreement to be terminable at pleasure of either party." Miller v. Miller, 64 S. Ct. 46 (134 F2d 586)



to pay for "utilities" and services Appellant had refused to furnish.

Approximately \$15,000 of income belonging to the Appellant had thus been used up for Respondent's benefit, none of which has been or is available to return to the Appellant. All of this property and the current income therefrom continues under the control of the Respondents and continues to be dispersed for their benefit against the rights and wishes of the Appellant.

Inasmuch as Appellant appeared to have won the case there seems no justification for awarding costs and attorney fees against her. No prior assent to any contractual obligation to pay attorney fees was ever claimed or proven against her. It was not shown that Appellant had received or misused any money paid by the Respondents; or that any of the funds contributed by them had been designated for taxes; or intended by them to be set aside and used in full for the payment of taxes. (A 11) No breach of the Seller's obligation was conditional upon the buyers paying

their proportional share thereof, which share they failed to show they had contributed, (See Plaintiffs' exhibits 4 and 5) <sup>1</sup>

It was admitted by the Respondents that these property taxes for the years 1950 to 1954 had in fact been paid to the state tax commission by Josephine Bernstein (T. 3), who is title holder of the property, and who retains a considerable interest therein superior to the rights of any of the parties to this suit. In Respondent's contracts with Smith they did not assume Smith's prior obligation due on the property to Bernstein. Respondents are not thereby liable to her.

---

1. "The court may construe a contract only so as to give effect to the entire agreement without ignoring any part thereof. Gates v. Deinas, Utah 2d 95 (279 P2d 458). (This case is squarely in point on this issue. Lower court had ignored condition and imposed obligation)

Also pertinent is ruling in Continental Bank v. Stewart (Utah 1955) 291 P2 890: "The Court will endeavor to give the contract a just and rational construction."

"Court cannot delete terms or words or ignore them in order to make a binding contract for the parties where none exists. Spooner v Reserve Life. 287 p 2d 735 (47 Wash. 29.)



The contract with Bernstein is not in evidence but it is available, and in the possession of Appellant, who did agree and assent to obligations thereunder in her original agreement with Smith. This Bernstein contract contains a provision that she can pay the taxes on the property if they should become delinquent. She has the right to demand repayment at any time or to exercise an option to consider said tax payments as increasing the balance due on the contract and collect 3/4 interest thereon until paid.

The record does not show that any demand has been made on the Respondents or upon Appellant by Bernstein for the amounts she has advanced for payment of these taxes. (T. 10-11) Perhaps Bernstein prefers to consider the amount advanced as a loan so she can draw this advantageous rate of interest (which is about 3 times as much as she could get in any bank).

It may be that if she did demand the payment, and if it were not paid on demand, that she would be entitled to sue Appellant for specific perform-

ance, as a third party beneficiary of the contract between Smith and Appellant, because said contract does include her and she becomes therefore a "creditor beneficiary" of said contract. However, Bernstein has not commenced any such suit. <sup>1</sup>

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