1957

Radley v. Smith et al : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

- I. SINCE THE PLEADINGS PROPERLY ALLEGED AND SET FORTH A CAUSE OF ACTION AGAINST APPELLANT FOR BREACH OF CONTRACT SHE CANNOT CLAIM SURPRISE AND ERROR IN THIS REGARD.
- II. SINCE APPELLANT NEITHER PLEADED NOR OFFERED EVIDENCE AS TO INVALIDITY OR ILLEGALITY OF THE CONTRACTS BUT, IN FACT, STIPULATED AS TO THEIR VALIDITY SHE CANNOT CLAIM COURT ERRED IN THIS REGARD.
- III. SINCE APPELLANT TOOK ASSIGNMENT OF THESE CONTRACTS FROM SELLER AND SAID CONTRACTS SPECIFICALLY PROVIDES THAT ITS STIPULATIONS "APPLY AND BIND" ASSIGNS OF RESPECTIVE PARTIES APPELLANT IS BOUND BY ITS TERMS.
- IV. SINCE VALID CONSIDERATION WAS INITIALLY AND CONTINUOUSLY THEREAFTER DULY PAID APPELLANT MAY IN CASE OF FAILURE, BE REQUIRED TO SPECIFICALLY PERFORM PAYMENT OF TAXES AND INSURANCE, AND MAINTAIN HALLS IN CLEAN CONDITION AND GOOD REPAIR AS THE CONTRACT PROVIDES AND BE LIABLE FOR DAMAGES FOR BREACH OF CONTRACT.

- V. SINCE APPELLANT CONTINUED TO ACCEPT MONEY PROVIDED, PURSUANT TO CONTRACT, FOR "HOT WATER, COLD WATER, HEAT, REFRIGERATION," A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION IS CREATED, IF NOT ALREADY IN EXISTENCE, REQUIRING SAID SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED.
- VI. SINCE THE CONTRACTS PROVIDE FOR PAYMENT BY DEFAULTING PARTY OF COSTS, EXPENSES AND REASONABLE ATTORNEY'S FEES "THAT MAY ARISE FROM ENFORCING THIS AGREEMENT" APPELLANT WAS PROPERLY ASSESSED THESE EXPENSES.

POINT I

SINCE THE PLEADINGS PROPERLY ALLEGED AND SET FORTH A CAUSE OF ACTION AGAINST APPELLANT FOR BREACH OF CONTRACT SHE CANNOT CLAIM SURPRISE AND ERROR IN THIS REGARD.

The complaint and amended complaint allege that appellant did fail to comply with the terms of the contracts herein (2 and 94) resulting in a breach of her contractual obligations. Paragraph 7 of said complaint reads as follows:

"7. That on or about the 1st day of May, 1955 defendants breached said contractual agreements by causing refrigeration service to be discontinued; that defendants, in utter disregard

of their contractual obligations with plaintiffs have failed and refused to pay taxes on said property herein described as the Avalon Apartments and, in particular, plaintiff's real property interests therein since the year 1951 converting unlawfully the money of plaintiffs which was paid for the purpose of paying taxes, resulting in a present tax lien of over \$7000.00; that said defendants have failed to maintain halls in clean condition and good repair....."

The appellant was present during pretrial discussions which evolved entirely around the question of her breach of contract as reflected in the Pretrial Order and additions (103 - 106) to which she did not object nor request amendments. Surely she cannot claim surprise or error in this regard.

POINT II

SINCE APPELLANT NEITHER PLEADED NOR OFFERED EVIDENCE AS TO INVALIDITY OR ILLEGALITY OF THE CONTRACTS BUT, IN FACT, STIPULATED AS TO THEIR VALIDITY SHE CANNOT CLAIM COURT ERRED IN THIS REGARD.

Appellant did not plead illegality of the contract in her answer so that question was never brought to issue (42-44). The question

of illegality was never placed in issue by the pretrial order (102-104) nor was any evidence offered to support an argument of illegality. The fact is that appellant even stipulated that the contracts were valid (159, 160). It appears in view of these facts no further argument is necessary in regard to the so-called Rent Acts of 1942 and 1947.

It should also be stated at this time that the fact that the contracts are referred to as a preliminary agreement does not make it any less valid or less enforceable nor does the fact that a trust or corporation was not set up support the appellant's contention in this regard, since it was her responsibility to do that (9). The court also made these observations (170).

POINT III

SINCE APPELLANT TOOK ASSIGNMENT OF THESE CONTRACTS FROM SELLER AND SAID CONTRACTS SPECIFICALLY PROVIDES THAT ITS STIPULATIONS "APPLY AND BIND" ASSIGNS OF RESPECTIVE PARTIES APPELLANT IS BOUND BY ITS TERMS.

As previously stated in this brief, the contracts require the buyer to pay \$15.00 per month whereby seller agrees to "maintain the halls in a clean condition and good repair" and "to keep the building and improvements on said premises insured up to 3/4 of its value and pay said general taxes...." (8). The contract further states "that the stipulations aforesaid are to apply to and bind heirs, executors,

administrators, successors and assigns of the respective parties hereto" (9).

We contend that appellant in accepting assignment of these contracts containing such a provision binding assignees that she expressly assumed performance of the obligations of assignor.

It was stipulated and stated in Pretrial Order as a fact that the contracts between respondents and defendant, E. Penn Smith, were assigned to appellant prior to acts complained of (102) so that is not at issue.

Appellant contends that she did not intend to accept the burdens of the contracts but only the benefits. This is a ridiculous contention for she knew the services required and heretofore furnished by Mr. Smith, she could read what was required in the contract, and, in fact, accepted these obligations of the contract from the beginning as she admits on page 5 of her brief by stating, she "remained in control of the fee and continued to perform all the normal functions of a landlord." Exhibit 3, appellant's letter of February 4, 1955, in the first paragraph contains an admission that for four consecutive years she had been accepting these obligations. Page one of that Exhibit lists expenses incurred by her in performance of her contractual obligation including cost of furnishing water, fuel, and gas, power and refrigeration, insurance and taxes. The Restatement of Contracts #161 states:

"Rights under a bilateral contract can be assigned as effectively as rights under a unilateral contract, but if rights are conditional on the performance of a return promise, no assignment can extinguish or vary materially the condition." Comment (a) Rights created by bilateral contracts are usually conditional upon some performance by the holder of the right, or by some other person, or upon some other event. The right of an assignee is subject to the same conditions as was the assignor's."

Restatement of Contracts #164 states:

"(1) Where a party to a bilateral contract, which is at the time wholly or partially executory on both sides, purports to assign the whole contract, his action is interpreted, in the absence of circumstances showing a contrary intention, as an assignment of the assignor's rights under the contract and a delegation of the performance of the assignor's duties.

(2) Acceptance by the assignee of such as assignment is interpreted, in the absence of circumstances showing a contrary intention, as both an assent to become as assignee of the assignor's rights and as a promise to the assignor to assume the performance of the assignor's duties."

Volume 5 of Williston on Contracts #1439 (a) states in substance that an assignee who has expressly or impliedly assumed performance of a

contract may have it enforced against them.

When appellant took assignment from E. Penn Smith all apartments were sold. Surely we are not expected to believe that she was so naive as to assume she was going to receive monthly contract payment plus \$15.00 per month without paying for heat, water, refrigeration, taxes, insurances and hall maintenance so clearly required by the contract. On the contrary, as we have pointed out, she understood the obligations and undertook performance of them. Without doubt the obligations and duties imposed on seller "apply and bind" his assignee the appellant herein.

POINT IV

SINCE VALID CONSIDERATION WAS INITIALLY AND CONTINUOUSLY THEREAFTER DULY PAID APPELLANT MAY, IN CASE OF FAILURE, BE REQUIRED TO SPECIFICALLY PERFORM PAYMENT OF TAXES AND INSURANCE, AND MAINTAIN HALLS IN CLEAN CONDITION AND GOOD REPAIR AS THE CONTRACT PROVIDES AND BE LIABLE FOR DAMAGES FOR BREACH OF CONTRACT.

The contracts vary in regard to sale price, down payment and monthly payments on the principal (7-26). These payments as well as monthly payments for taxes and utilities have been duly made and there is no issue or question raised concerning these payments the matter having been disposed of by Pretrial Order (103).

The respondents paid this \$15.00 monthly payment to appellant fully intending for it to

cover taxes as well as insurance and utilities as it had always done in the preceding years. It is not material whether or not that sum was adequate to cover all of these services. The fact is that if appellant accepted the money for the purpose of making said payments, she becomes obligated, to so perform, if not by the written terms at least by an implied contract. For what it may be worth respondents have prepared exhibit 5 which is a tabulation of expenses, including taxes. The income from 24 apartments at \$15.00 per month for one year would be \$4,320.00. Exhibit 5 shows:

<u>YEAR</u>	<u>EXPENSES</u>	<u>INCOME</u>	EXCESS OR
			<u>PROFIT</u>
1952	\$3,509.94	\$4,320.00	\$810.06
1953	4,247.05	4,320.00	72.95
1954	3,610.82	4,320.00	709.18
1955	4,231.50	4,320.00	88.50

Even if appellant had some merit to her contention that the monthly payments were not enough she should have applied the money taken in to make payment of taxes and other obligations which were specifically and expressly required by contract. If she chose to apply that money improperly it should not work to the detriment of respondents but amounts to a misappropriation of funds by her. The actual reason she felt she was not receiving enough money to make the required payments is because she was not making payment herself on the 12 apartments which she acquired by forfeiture.

Damages should be allowed for appellant's breach of contract to maintain the halls

resulting in greatly reduced property value. Jack L. Owen and Wanda Owen were forced to trade their property for an automobile of about \$800.00 value (181). The Owens had paid in a total of about \$5,514.68 on their apartment (183, also Exhibit 15). They were forced to move in May, 1955 because of appellants threats to shut off utilities (180) and finally made this trade after advertising and attempting to sell from May to September, 1955 during which time the apartment was vacant. This poor market condition was principally the result of appellant's failure to maintain the halls and pay taxes (184, 191, 195 - 198). Exhibits 6 - 12 show the worn and unsightly condition of these halls. A similar apartment sold for \$4,150.00 in 1949 before this deterioration and tax delinquency occurred (188).

The respondents are entitled to damages sufficient to compensate them for actual loss sustained by them to put them in as good a position financially as they would have been in if there had been no breach and contract completed (*Bucholz v. Green Brothers Company*, 172 N. E. 161 (Mass.)). The case goes on to state that you can recover for those elements of damage which follow as a natural and probable consequence of the breach and such as may be presumed to have been in the contemplation of the parties at the time the contract was made (see also *Housing Corp. v. O'Toole*, 74 N. E. 2nd 286 and 73 N. E. 2nd 200).

Uncertainty as to amount of damages does not prevent recovery, if evidence is sufficient

to enable court to make a fair and reasonable finding in respect thereto. A party who broke the contract cannot escape liability because of lack of perfect measure of damages caused by the breach. It is enough if damages are the direct result of the breach and evidence furnishes sufficient data for approximate estimate of the amount thereof (Cockburn v. O'Meara. 155 Fed. 2nd 340).

In the case of Matthew V. LaPrade, 107 S. E. 795 (Virginia) the court approving an earlier case stated "If the purchaser has paid anything, he is entitled to recover the money paid with interest, and also the sums properly expended by him for examination of title etc.". In the Utah Case, Dunshee V. Geoghegan, 25 P. 731, where the vendor refused or could not convey the land, the vendee recovered amount paid in plus interest and the difference in value between price paid and value at time of breach.

Surely \$1.00 was not adequate damages especially to the respondents Owens for appellant's failure to perform.

POINT V

SINCE APPELLANT CONTINUED TO ACCEPT MONEY PROVIDED, PURSUANT TO CONTRACT, FOR "HOT WATER, COLD WATER, HEAT, REFRIGERATION," A CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION IS CREATED, IF NOT ALREADY IN EXISTENCE, REQUIRING SAID SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED.

Though the contract requires respondent to pay \$15.00 a month for hot water, cold water,

refrigeration, taxes and insurance it does not specifically spell out a corresponding duty upon appellant to provide hot water, cold water and refrigeration. The contract does, however, by express written terms require appellant to maintain halls and pay insurance and taxes (8).

The contract infers an obligation on the appellant to the extent appellant accepted it as an obligation. By accepting the money, an implied contract is created so that for each month she accepted the money she was obligated to provide the specified service. In this manner there was a manifestation of mutual assent by appellant to pay hot water, cold water heat, refrigeration, taxes and insurance. This position is supported by the Restatement of Contracts and Utah cases.

1. RESTATEMENT OF CONTRACTS VOL. 1 CHAPT. 1

Sec. 3. An agreement is a manifestation of mutual assent by two or more persons to one another.

(b) Manifestation of assent may be made by words or by any other conduct (Sec. 21). Even silence under some circumstances is such a manifestation (see Sec. 72).

Chapter 3.

Sec. 20. Requirements of Manifestation of Mutual Assent:

A manifestation of mutual assent

by the parties to an informal contract is essential to its formation and the acts by which such assent is manifested must be done with the intent to do those acts; (Except as qualified by Sec. 55, 71 & 72) neither mental assent to the promises in the contract nor real or apparent intent that the promises shall be legally binding is essential (underlining added).

(a) Mutual assent to the formation of informal contract is operative only to the extent that it is manifested. If manifestation is at variance with mental intent.... it is the expression which is controlling.

Not mutual assent but a manifestation indicating such assent is what the law requires. It is essential that the acts manifesting assent shall be done intentionally.

Sec. 21. The manifestation of mutual assent may be made wholly or partly by written or spoken words or by other acts or conduct.

(a) Conduct may often convey as clearly as words a promise or an assent to a proposed promise and where no form is required by law a condition of the validity or enforceability of contract there is

no distinction in the effect of a promise whether it is expressed (1) in writing, (2) orally, (3) in acts, (4) partly in one of these ways, partly in others.

Sec. 22. The manifestation of mutual assent almost invariably takes the form of an offer or proposal by one party accepted by the other party or parties.

(a) One party must announce what he will do before there can be any manifestation of mutual assent.

Sec. 63. EFFECT OF PERFORMANCE BY OFFEREE WHERE OFFER REQUESTS PROMISE.

If an offer requests a promise from the offeree, and the offeree without making the promise actually does or tenders what he was requested to promise to do, there is a contract, subject to the rule stated in Sec. 56, provided each performance is completed or tendered within the time allowable for accepting by making a promise. A tender in such a case operates as a promise to render complete performance.

2. THE RESTATEMENT POSITION IS ACCEPTED BY UTAH AND WESTERN COURTS.

A. Thornton v Pasch et.al., Utah 1943

139 Pac. 2nd 1002

Action by Thornton against Pasch for breach of contract plaintiff appeals from adverse judgement. Reversed.

Defendants were in the roofing business. Plaintiff was trucker. Plaintiff bid on hauling 100 carloads of roofing by writing it on a scratch pad for defendants. About a week later defendant told plaintiff's wife that they had contract for plaintiff to sign. Plaintiff came in and signed contract. Neither original nor copy was ever signed by defendants. Contract said, "I hereby agree to furnish labor etc. I agree to unload cars etc. I will submit statements for payments. It is agreed that you will pay me within two days." Defendants said be ready for work May 26. Later defendants called and said he would haul himself. Plaintiff sued for breach of Contract. Defendants claimed no contract. Held for Plaintiff.

Court says: It is well recognized rule of law that where a contract is not required to be in writing, mutual assent or the meeting of minds may be proved by words spoken as well as by acts and conduct. Restatement of Contracts Vol. 1, Chapt. 3 Sec. 21 says: "The manifestation of mutual assent may be made wholly or partly by written or spoken words or by

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